Merton Council

Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Board
Agenda

Membership
Councillors:

Stan Anderson

Agatha Mary Akyigyina OBE
Councillor Jean Crossby
Nick Draper

Councillor Drew Heffernan
Simon McGrath

David Williams

Councillor Annie Moral

Substitute Members:

Councillor Vincent Galligan

Date: Tuesday 26 February 2019
Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Council chamber - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden SM4
5DX

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.
For more information about the agenda please contact
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3616556.

All Press contacts: communications@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3181



mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk

Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Board Agenda
26 February 2019

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 1-4
4

Budget Monitoring 2018/19 and Revenue Estimates 2019/20 5-28

()]

Contractor's Report February 2019 29-34

6 Exclusion of the Public

To RESOLVE that the public are excluded from the meeting
during consideration of the following reports on the grounds
that they are exempt from disclosure for the reasons

stated in the agenda.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

7 Exempt Minutes 35-36

8 Verbal Update from Client Side Manager

Update is Exempt by virtue of paragraph(s) 1 and 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at
the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter. If
members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give
rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of
the item. For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.



Agenda Iltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

MERTON AND SUTTON JOINT CEMETERY BOARD
20 NOVEMBER 2018

(2.00 pm - 3.30 pm)

PRESENT Councillor Annie Moral (in the Chair), Councillor Stan Anderson,
Councillor Agatha Mary Akyigyina, Councillor Nick Draper,
Councillor Drew Heffernan, Councillor Simon McGrath,
Councillor David Williams and Councillor Annie Moral

ALSO PRESENT Zoe Church — Treasurer to the Board
Doug Napier — Client Side Manager
Lisa Jewell — Clerk to the Board

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jean Crossby and from Howard
Joy — Board Surveyor

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations of interest.
3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda ltem 3)

Councillor Simon McGrath asked the Board to note that a request he made at the
previous meeting had not been included. This was a request for further information
regarding Board Members’ indemnity insurance. This was noted and Officers agreed
to check the situation.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2018 are agreed as an
accurate record, to include the correction detailed above

4 UPDATE REPORT ON CEMETERY PUBLIC TOILET BLOCK (Agenda Item
4)

The Merton Client Side Manager presented his report on the repair work undertaken
on the Cemetery Public Toilet Block. Members were pleased to hear that this work

was soon to be completed and requested that they be sent photos of the completed
work.

RESOLVED

The Board noted the contents of the report

5 CONTRACTOR UPDATE REPORT (Agenda Item 5)

The Board noted the contractor’s report. The Board discussed the visual state of the

Cemetery and sought assurance that it was being kept as neat and tidy as possible.
The Client Side Manager explained that there was an issue with the small aperture

Pager 1


http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

bins, and that larger bins have now been added. If there is any fly —tipping then it
needs to be reported to Veolia and the civil enforcement teams. The Board asked
that the Client Side Manager discusses the issues of waste management at the
Cemetery with idverde and Veolia.

Members emphasised that it was the will of the Board that its customers should
experience the cemetery to be as tidy as possible, and they asked Officers to take
this away as the main point of the discussion. The Board also emphasised that the
contract with idverde says that the Cemetery will be kept tidy.

Members asked Officers to check the interment figures for August 2018, as different
figures were quoted in the two tables within the report. However Members noted that
whichever figure was correct it showed a large increase in the number of interments
in that month.

Members also noted a large jump in the number of burials being held on a Saturday
and noted that this is a more expensive option. However the Cemetery Manager
reported that customers were making a choice to use the Saturday slots and that
customers were making use of increased flexibility now offered.

The Client-Side manager explained that the refurbishment of the toilet block and the
renewal of the Bearer Beams had been the major work undertaken by the Board in
the current year.

The Board noted the Cemetery Managers comments about the digital mapping of
Cemetery plots and this being necessary for future use. The Board noted that most of
MSJC had been digitally mapped in this way but the Ahmadiyya section of the
Cemetery still need to be completed. The Board asked the Client Side Manager to
look at this issue and to report back to the Board regarding the completion of this
project.

RESOLVED
The Board noted the Contractor Update Report

6 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION AND UPDATES TO
THE RISK REGISTER (Agenda ltem 6)

The Clerk to the Board presented the report on proposed changes to the constitution
and explained that these were necessary to allow the Board to meet its legal
requirements with regards to current financial reporting arrangements and also to
meet best practice requirements for definition of a quorum. The Board also noted the
updated risk register.

The Board did not object to any of the recommendations, but it was said that the role
of the Board has changed with the introduction of the new contract and that a more
wide ranging review of the Board’s governance structure and decision making
arrangements was necessary going forwards.

Members agreed to the proposed changes as detailed in the report and also
requested that a further recommendation be added. This recommendation requests

Page 2



that the Board be presented with a review of the Governance Structure of the Board
and its suitability with regard to the current management arrangements of the
Cemetery.

RESOLVED

A. That the Board agrees the proposed amendment to the Constitution of the
Board that the appointment of Members to the Board lasts for one year and
begins once they are appointed by their respective Council at its Annual
Meeting

B. That the Board agrees the amendment to the Constitution such that the
Annual meeting of the Board can be held at any time after its Members are
appointed.

C. The Board agrees the amendment to the Constitution such that that the
Quorum for a Board Meeting shall be one quarter of the whole number of
members or a minimum of three members with at least one from each Council.
If the meeting is inquorate then business, where possible, will be held over to
the next meeting of the Board

D. That the Board notes the Risk Register at November 2018

E. That the Board requests a review of the Governance Structure of the Board
and its suitability with regard to the current management arrangements of the
Cemetery.

7 REVISED LEASE AT GREEN LANE PRIMARY SCHOOL (Agenda ltem 7)

The Board received the report of the Surveyor to the Board, and members noted that
the revised lease was for only 15 years, and therefore the land would become
available, if needed for the Cemetery, at the end of this lease period.

RESOLVED

The Board noted the report and details of the new lease for Green Lane Primary
School

8 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC (Agenda Item 8)
RESOLVED: That the public are excluded from the meeting during consideration of

the following report(s) on the grounds that it is (they are) exempt from disclosure for
the reasons stated in the report(s).

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

MERTON AND SUTTON JOINT CEMETERY BOARD
26 February 2019

Wards; Borough Wide Merton and Sutton
Subject: Budget Monitoring 2018/19 and Revenue Estimates 2019/20

Lead Officer: Zoe Church

Recommendations:

1. That the current budgetary position for 2018/19 based on the end of
January 2019 shown in Columns 1 to 3 of Appendix A be noted.

2. The Revenue Estimates for 2019/20 shown in Column 4 of Appendix A
be approved.

3. That the precepts for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 be set at
zero.

4. That the Board establishes its next meeting as early as possible in
June 2019 to ensure that approved information is included in Merton’s
Accounts and information is despatched to Merton’s External Auditors
as soon as possible.

5. That Idverde be requested to provide comparative charging information
to this meeting next year so that the Board may recommend Fee
increases for the financial year 2020/21

6. That Merton Council be asked to consider price increases of up to
2.5% for 2019/20 for burial services.
7. That the Board review and approve the Risk Management Strategy and

Risk Register (as at February 2019) attached as Appendix |

1. Purpose of the Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents the projected outturn for 2018/19 based on the
budgetary monitoring to 31 January 2019 and revenue estimates for
2019-2020.

2. Details

2.1 Estimates

2.1.1 The Board’s 2018/19 Budgetary Monitoring is attached at Appendix A
(columns 1 to 3). The draft Revenue Estimates for 2019/20 are
attached as Appendix A (column 4). All estimates are at outturn prices.
Supplementary details are contained within appendices:

e Salaries, pension contributions — Appendix B

Management and administration expenses — Appendix C

Asset register and depreciation — Appendix D

Loan repayment — Appendix E

Interment income — Appendix F

Rental income — Appendix G

Page 5



21.2

212

2.2

2.2.1

222

2.4

241

242

243

Appendix H contains the precept history of the Merton and Sutton
Joint Cemetery Board.

Estimates have been compiled utilising the best information available at
the time of despatch, the costs and income will continue be monitored.
A monitoring update will be provided at the June meeting of the board.

Income

Appendix F details the actual and anticipated income for the cemetery
under the new contractual arrangements. Prices for services were not
increased last financial year, prior to the new contractual arrangements
the Board would receive an annual comparative report to inform pricing
decisions. It is therefore recommended that that Merton council
considers increasing the pricing structure for services up to 2.5% for
2019/20 and that Idverde be request to provide a pricing comparison
report (similar to that provided during prior year’s budget setting
processes) to the February 2020 budget setting meeting of the Board.

Appendix G details the expected rental income in 2018/19 and 2019/20
Salaries

Salaries to the Board’s part time Chief Officers, i.e. Clerk, Treasurer,
Registrar and Consultant Surveyor are increased annually in line with
negotiated and announced Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) awards
in accordance with the Board policy, approved on 8th March 1972 (Min.
48/3/72).

The Board meeting of 24th April 1989 resolved that subject to there
being no legal impediment, future salary awards for the Board'’s part
time officers be implemented from 1 April each year so as to coincide
with the Board’s financial year. Allowance of 2.8% pay award has been
built into salary estimates for 2019/20.

Every three years Authorities are required to evaluate the sufficiency of
their pension funds to meet future commitments and review appropriate
contribution rates. This is called an Actuarial Evaluation. The pension
contribution is based on the actuarial report received from Surrey
Count Councils Actuary. The new rates from the next actuarial
evaluation are scheduled to feed into the 2020/21 estimates.

Page 6



2.5

2.51

252

252

2.6

2.6.1

2.6.2

3.1

Interim Valuation

Attached at Appendix D is the re-cast asset register of the Cemetery —

based on the schedule provided to the District Valuer. The second

table on the Appendix shows the anticipated movement in asset value

for 2018/19. As a consequence of this change there will be:

i) Adoption of an accounting policy

ii) Anticipated Valuation Loss of £135k

iii) Anticipated increase in asset value on the balance sheet of
£1,250k matched by the creation of a revaluation reserve

The anticipated impact of this change is replicated in the monitoring
and estimates (including Appendix A1)

Appendix E sets out the interest and principle repayments incurred
from the £1.763 million loan for various works. It is assumed that the
loan will be over 25 years (the anticipated life of the extension) at a rate
of 3.47% (rate as at June 2013). The Appendix highlights that the
board will be in year 7 of the repayment schedule in 2019/20.The
repayment commitment within this schedule has been fed into the
estimates in Appendix A.

Special Projects
The special projects budget for 2019/20 is proposed as follows:

Special Projects

Bearer Beams 50,000
Roads and Footpaths 20,000
Demolition of Greenhouse 20,000
Restructuring 10,000
Total Special Projects 100,000

Business cases will need to be compiled so that Schemes to be
progressed in 2019/20 can be prioritised appropriately.

Common Fund Balances

The balance on the Common Fund brought forward into 2018/2019 is
£661,678 plus the balances on the two smaller reserves of £29,959
provides a total of fund balances carried forward of £691,637.

Consultation undertaken or proposed
None for the purposes of this report.

Page 7



5. Timetable
5.1  None for the purposes of this report.

6. Financial, resource and property implications

6.1  As contained in the body of the report

7. Legal and statutory implications

7.1 None for the purposes of this report.

8. Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications

8.1 None for the purposes of this report.

9. Risk management and health and safety implications

9.1  Attached as Appendix | is the updated Risk Strategy and updated risk
register for review and approval by the Board.

Appendices

A — Budgetary Monitoring 2018/19 and Revenue Estimates
2019/2020

A1 — Common Fund Balance

B — Salary Estimates and Estimated and Contractors Charge

C — Management and Administration Expenses

D — Depreciation and Asset Register

E — Estimated Debt Repayment

F — MSJCB Interment etc. Income from Contractual Arrangements

G — Rental Estimates

H — Precept History MSJCB

| — Risk Management Strategy and Risk Register as at February
2019

Background Papers — the following documents have been relied on in

drawing up this report but do not form part of the report

Budget files and Budgetary Control files in the Corporate Services

Department

Page 8




Appendix A

Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Board

Revised Projected Variance to Original
Description Budget Outturn Budget Budget Narrative

2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

£ £ £ £

Employee Costs (1) (2) (3) (4)
Salaries 4,960 4,657 (303) 4,800 Detail in Appendix B
Super Fund Revaluation Costs 37,000 37,000 0 37,000 Actuarial Review Contribution
Total Employee Costs 41,960 41,657 (303) 41,800
Running Costs
Building Improvements 3,000 7,040 4,040 8,000
Building Maint - Mechanical 3,000 0 (3,000) 0
Building Maint - Electrical 150 0 (150) 0
Gas 1,500 2,477 977 3,000
Electricity 2,000 2,507 507 3,000
NNDR 8,000 10,587 2,587 13,030 Expected increase circa £5k
Use of Water 6,300 2,500 (3,800) 3,000
Contract/Client Side 215,820 221,330 5,510 222,180
General Office Expenses 5,500 0 (5,500) 2,000 Digitising
Multi-Functional Printers 0 276 276 500
Print Room Costs 0 16 16 100
Fees (Mgt & Admin Expenses) 21,770 21,770 0 22,340 Detail in Appendix C
External Audit Fees 1,500 1,300 (200) 1,500
Agents Fees 0 0 0 0
Affiliation Fees 500 0 (500) 0
Consultants 10,000 9,500 (500) 10,000 £8k Actuarial and £2k Valuation
Insurance Premiums 4,120 4,120 0 5,000
External Waste Charges 1,500 0 (1,500) 0
Internal Legal Hard Charge 10,300 3,015 (7,285) 10,000
Telephone - Call Charges 1,200 983 (217) 1,200
Mobile Phones - Call Plans 0 223 223 0
Revaluation Loss 0 135,400 135,400 0 Details in Appendix D
Depreciation 89,510 83,376 (6,134) 41,310 Details in Appendix D
Interest on Loan 48,950 48,950 0 46,510 Details in Appendix E
Total Running Costs 434,620 555,369 120,749 392,670
Special Projects
Toilet Block Refurbishment 32,850 32,850 0 0
Bearer Beams 59,130 59,130 0 50,000
Demolition of Greenhouse 0 0 0 20,000
Roads and Footpaths 0 0 0 20,000
Restructuring 10,000 0 (10,000) 10,000
Total Special Projects 101,980 91,980 (10,000) 100,000
Total Expenditure 578,560 689,006 110,446 534,470
Income
Rental Income (41,710) (46,955) (5,245) (43,020) Detail in Appendix G
Interment Fees (567,020) (537,733) 29,287 (545,000) Detail in Appendix F
Memorial Fees 0 0 0 0
Interest Income (3,170) (4,591) (1,421) (4,430) 0.75% on Average Balance
Total Income (611,900) (589,279) 22,621 (592,450)
Transfer to Reserves 33,340 (99,727) (133,067) 57,980

Page 9



Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Board

Appendix A1

2018/19 Common Fund Balance 2019/20
(661,678) Balance b/f (710,195)
99,727 Add Surplus (Deficit) for the Year (57,980)
(83,376) Transfer Depreciation to Capital Adjustment Account (41,310)
70,532 Minimum Revenue Provision 70,532
(135,400) Loss on Revaluation 0
(710,195) Balance c/f (738,953)

Page 10




Appendix B

Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Board Estmates 2018-19

Salaries - Part time Officers

Salaries - Part time Officers
Clerk

Treasurer

Registrar

Consultant Surveyor

Pensions

Total Employee Costs

Original Original
Revenue Revenue
Revenue Revenue Esti Esti
Estimates Estimates zs(t)lllg?lt;s ;;;';7;35
2017/18 2017/18 g
£ £
2,100 2,100 2,140 2070
2,100 2,100 2,140 2070
2,100 0 0 0
660 660 680 660
6,960 4,860 4,960 4,800
37,000 37,000 37,000 37,000
43,960 41,860 41,960 41,800

Employee Costs - allowance for 2.8% Pay Rise from actual 2018/19

Page 11



0bETT 0LLIT 08717 067°6€ $93.1eYdY [8I0],
(1) 4 Surpunoy
07S‘T 8PH'T 00¥°C 0EP'LT Jusun)redi( UOPLIRUISY PUB JUIUIUOIIAUY [E)O],
. . . . ©)s Juowddeue sojeysq pue siredor Suipying [eoudd pue
SOBIAROE POJEIal 104 - §1¢F @) shep 81076 syre 00v'c o6ze Eo_booww ‘JeoruEyOaU UT woo:ocommo SI001}JO _mcw_ﬁmmﬂw%a m:ocﬂ A
uonouny
. oouonradxa [eImynoLI0qIe
sty dyeaodioout 0} 3013 Aq pasearout 5utaq|0 0 0 orist pUE [2IN)NOTIIOY ‘[EOIUYIS) [JIM SIOJIJJ() [BUOISSAJOI] dIY ],
SI 99 JUAI[D) - SUOLOUNJ IPIS JUSI[O 0} PIPPE MON
Judunyaedd(q UONBIFUILSIY PUE JUIWUOIIAUY
178°61 8IE61 088°8T 098°TT Jusunedi( $9d1A198 Aedodao) [ero,
SOIIIATIO. pUE STUIOIW JUNEUIPIO ] ] ] ]
-00 pue SursiueSio 10§ - ¢1£3 @ SKep 01 0s1°¢ 090°¢ 000°¢ 069°C SIVIAISS dneIoowe(d
suonouny 1030enu00 Jo 1ed moNJo 0 0 01C SUOIEOTUNUIIO)) 29 SUIONIBIA
gDSIA Aq PIsI[IN JUSWIA)E)S QOULUISAOT
[enuue uo oM sAep ¢'[ JIpne [euIsjur pus(00Z'y 001‘% 000% 08€°€ Jpny [edIu]
IeoA o) Sunyeropun sAep ¢ - 0ZyF @) sAep 01
SWIA)SAS . . . .
erodio) pasuendwo)) Jo asn 1001FQ SwW], Med ol ol 08¢ 08¢ ABojouyoa | uoneusozul
90IAIOS JO 2SN OO ] ] ] ] ]
AW, 8] PUE DI 193OI 0 SBIBYD [[ewS L60°C 0¥0'C 000°C ovL'S opIS JJEIS 29 SUIUTLL], ‘SOOINOSIY UL
SUOROULY 1039611109 301 0 0 0€2°C (ur] uopapy [ouy) S81eYIY IO SINYSE)
3red MOU UOSTEI] JOWO0)SNO PUE UOTIOI[[0)) SWOIU] ’ ’
19030 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
1od 0753 B) J1TIS 1990 WL e Jo 1uouikeg|?89 ! 0¥9°1 009°T 0191 [101keq
Surssoooxd
pue jusweSeuew JuowAed - G1¢F @) sAep ¢
juoweSeurw YSII pue SULIOUOW [BIOUBUT) . . . . QwooU] 29 SJUSWAR{ - JUBISISSY
SAep / “Ipne [eUIoIXd U [BUIUL YIIM UOSIEI] SvTL 890'L 006'9 0z9y [BOLIS]) PUBIUBIUNOOIY [edIOULIJ PUE JUOWIOSBUBIA] QOUBUL]
PUE JUSWSIE)S SOUBUIIAOS [ENUUE PUE SJUNOOJE
puo reak Surjidwos skep § - 0zHF @) shep 1
Juaunpreda( 391419 dgeaodaio)
¥ ¥ ¥ ¥
02/6107 w1 3312y jo uondidsaq 0Z-610T | 61-810C | S8I/L10T | 8I-LI0T yuounaedaq
ewnsy | gewnsy | ewnsy | gewnsy
PasIAdY | [eursSLiQ

SosUAdX ;] UOELSIUIUIPY PUE JUSWIISEUR]A - PIEOY

D xipuaddy

9)9UId)) JUIOf U0)INng pue UOYIJA

Page 12



OF€IETP) 00°002°098°C [00°00T [ 10°SL0°0STT [(r9°10r'SED) | 00°058°2¢ [00°0£1°6S [(8L'SLE'ES) |THTTL'IEL'T $60°SS 1810,
00001 001 00°0 33331 BI0qE3]
00001 001 (9T06L°S) _[9T06LS 1 33331 TI0qE3]
(68°88€7) (81 00°000°6L SISIT8Y (LT01LD _|Trsevze  [61 )3 WO0Y SN
000020 [¢ 00°000°T1 16'€90°6 (TTL89) 1€°€CET 9 3SNOYUAAID
000009 [91 00°000°08 YIOpS 1Y 000S8TE (6v'1€6)  [SE€S€9°S L1 W00 SUBTEA HPOTE 391101,
Q117600 [L1 00°000°981 10°9L9°SE1 (470960 [€T¥8TES  [81 [ELEE)
(00°050) 4 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 00°0 €1 aTeren
0000001 00°000°F 1 00°000F1 000 00°0 S1 WO
(€€€es1D[o€g 00°000°9P€ 01°068°THE [CERE S 1€ 303 O/3SNOH SIERIE)
00°000°6F 1 00°000°6¥ 1 00°0 PUET SIEIR)
00°000°ZEF' T 000 (#9101°5€1) 00°0€1°6S_[(00TES0L) [#9°€088LST 0T 0S€9C PUET K123
00°000°01 1 10°856°601 66’17 $20°0 BATbY - ) eIy
(000009 __|[ST 00°000°06 6£06599 (#9095 D [sTOL6FT _ [91 S3uIp[Ing SA[qeIS
00°000°01 1 0€'$50201 0LYh6'L 0ELY SIQEIS - 1D%D BRIV
00°000°SET TTSTTSIL 8LYLLGI 0S€°1C
00°000°STT 8LYSSTII TTSHYT 09T 1009 U0~ BV |
P | 610T/€0/1E aseanouy PR upag 8102/€0/1€

uonenardaq npasn [er01 WP — aseandq yoig soreag wonendadoq 1er01, AT masn | saay \4

uopenjeA »RoL =

11%)

61-810T SIUIWIAOIA| I9)ISISAY 19SS pajewnsy o
TP TIL9ELT [20°06L°T 00'SS9°TS  [8T°9S STOL6PT  [ISLLTTL _[0SI6S 9T06L'S [F9'LISOLL [01°Z8TE [€8'899°01F T [OFPLT [ITIEL P6'FOF [6L°1SS'9T TE€IET[IEELT SE'SEY'S 9S'€ITE  [€T6FE  [00TIZ98T  [00°'SL6'6T _ [00°0TT°TT _ [S60'SS 1©0L
000 13331 B0y |
9T06L'S 9T 06L'S 19331 v10qey]
TIs6yie 20°06L°T 0§'LT€9T__ [8T9S 05168 01°78T¢ 0v'vLT TEELT "010 WOOY SSAN
1€°€I€T 1€€C€T ASNOYUIIID
SE'SEY'S SESEOS W00 BUDIEAHPOIE 1RO T,
€TPSTES 0§'LTE€9T ¥670F [6L7155°9C de)|
000 JFeIeD
000 )
9S'€ITE 9S€ITE 201JJO/3SNOH SIERIE)
000 pUET SIayejare)
$9°€08"8LS'T TSLLTTI $9°L98°011 €8'899°01F'1 [T LET60C  [THPLLST  |PLT6EST 05€9C PUET K1a)owa)
6617 €6°C L6F1 60'7CT S200 eAIbY - 5 BaIv
STOLEPT STOL6TT SSUIP[INg SAIJEIS
[ T6PSS 1971€8°C  [LI'SSSF 0ELY SAQEIS - 1DFD IV
SLPLLGL 8LYLLGL_|0SEIC QLIS - 199 LIV
TSP L [00U9S UOJSTUIY - V BTV

oan
J3er0)s ¥ Spunotn 1331 nem wooy PSS uondIds Sunesy Isnoy wooy wooy oo/ uondd§ WPIO | DN WPION oan
e S.2[10g MIN | PIYS 210)S (Iouriojsuea], o PYS w-.-_:On— 3 X W) N " —ua_ﬂ——U Isnoy MIN SV JIssy
PA J9g sdoy A193pU13) Jrern | Arepunog | SSON Bumog | Dyno/1 | pPdey) uaIn) [Suimerq Jyers|Sunm p sae saodng | jo moke B UOLBIA | 3 UOLBIA | uojeysIE)
) P19V

axipoddy

ST0C UIBIA [ JE SE 19)SI30Y oSSy sunsed-oy




0 €€S'0L  990'IVT  66S'TIT  TEI'TST  999°TSE  66I°CTY  TEL'C6Y  SIT'HIS  86L'VE9  TEE°SOL  VIS'SLL  L6E9PS  T€6'916  ¥9I¥'L86  L66°LSO'T 0ES'STI'T €90°661°T [96S°69T°L [6TTOVE'T T99°0IY'T 961°I8H'T 6TLISST TIT'TTY'T S6LTE9'T €/1¢€ e se uejeg
186°7L LIY'SL SLS'LL €7€°08 1LLTS LIT'SS S99°L8 €11°06 19526 L00°S6 SSH'L6 £06°66 ISET0L  L6L'POL  SYT'LOL  €69°601  I¥I'TIL  L8S'PIL  [SEO'LIT [€8F°611  I€6'ITI  LLEPTL  ST89TI  €LT'6TL  ITLIEL [L2UAN
€€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L £€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L €€5°0L £€5°0L £€S°0L £€S°0L £€5°0L Juwomsedoy
8P 68t TE'L 06L°6 8€T'TI 8911 TEI'LT 085°61 870°C YLY'YT 7769 0LE'6T 818°1¢ 9T e TIL9E 091°6€ 809°1¥ $S0°Y 20S°9% 056'8¥ 86€°1S ¥r8°es 76798 0vL'8S 881°19 Jsduyuy
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
8E/LEOT  LE/9E0T  9€/SEOT  SE/HEOT  bE/€E0T  €€/TE0T  TE/IEOT  1€/0€0T  0€/6T0T  6T/8T0T  8T/LTOT  LT/9T0T  9T/STOT  STHYTOT  +vT/€T0T  €T/TTOT TU/ITOT  1T/0T0T |0T/610T |61/810T  SI/LIOT  LI/910T  9I/SIOT  SIAVIOT  ¥I/€10T
STIBIA  PTIBIA  €TIABIA  TTABIX  JTABIX (T ABIA 6] ABOA QI JABIX L] JABIX Q[ JBIX ST JABIA  HIIABIA  C[ABIXN [ ABIX [ JIBIX (] IBIX 6 189X gaBIX L IedX 9 aBIX S aBIX 21208 € a8 7aex JRLE)N
WE0'] pauIquio)y
0 L9T'SE  €€S'0L  008'SOT  990°THI  €EE€°9LT  66STIT  998°9vT  TEI'T8T  66ELIE  999°TSE  TE6°LSE  66I°CTY  S9V'SSY  TEL'C6Y  866°8TS  S9THIS  TES'66S [86LFEY  [S90°0L9  TEE'SOL  86S°0vL  ¥98'SLL  ISI'TIS  L6E'9HS €/1¢€ e se uejeg
1T'ss w01, pasnlpy
(6v9°L) $1/€1 03 Judunsnlpy
16¥°9€ VIL'LE 8€6'8€ 9108 98€° 1 609°TH €E8'EY LSO0'S 187°9% $0S'LYy STL'SY 156'6 9LI'IS 66€°7S €79°€S LY8'S 1L0°9S $6T°LS 81S°8S hL'6S 996°09 681°79 €1H°€9 LEYYY 198°S9 [L2UAN
L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE Juwomsedoy
Tl LYY'T 1L9°¢ S681 6119 TeE'L 995°8 06L°6 $10°TT LETTI 19%°€1 S89p1 606°ST TEI'LL 95€81 08s°61 +08°0T LT0°TT IST'€T SLY'YT 00669°ST  TT69T 9¥1°8T 0LE'6T $65°0€ Jsaadjuy
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
8E/LEOT  LE/9E0T  9€/SEOT  SE/HEOT  bE/€E0T  €€/TE0T  TE/IEOT  1€/0€0T  0€/6T0T  6T/8T0T  8T/LTOT  LT/9TOT  9T/STOT  ST/HYTOT  +vT/€TL0T  €T/TTOT TU/ITOT  1T/0T0T |0T/610T |61/810T  SI/LIOT  LI/910T  9I/SIOT  SIAVIOT  ¥I/€10T 4
STIBAX P I8N (YR LL) N (41D JT 18X 0T 18X 61 1BIX 81 18X LY AR 9] JBIX [MRLUE) A ELD)N €1 IBX (4 ELED.N T1 A8 0] 18X 618X LELL)§ LIABIX [ ELL)§ [SRLUE) Y | ELL) € 1B (L) | ELE)N 1
99°188 ueoy jeusulld) eron
(@)
SIBIX ST poLdg aa?noy-
€10z dunfie se %Ly’ DJ»E&E
WEo'] uopng,
0 L9T'SE  €€S'0L  008'SOT  990°THI  €EE€°9LT  66STIT  998°9vT  TEI'TST  66ELIE  999°TSE  TE6'LSE  66I°CTY  SIV'SSY  TEL'E6Y  866°8TS  S9THIS  TES'66S [86LFEY  [S90°0L9  TEE'SOL  86S°0vL  ¥98'SLL  ISI'TIS  L6E'9HS €/1¢€ e se uejeg
60S'€L w01, pasnlpy
6¥9°L $1/€1 03 yudunsnipy
16¥°9€ VIL'LE 8€6'8€ 910y 98€° 1 6097y €E8'EY LSO0'S 187°9% $0S'LYy STL'SY 156'6 9LI'IS 66€°7S €79°€S LY8'S 1L0°9S $6T°LS 81S°8S 9S'IYL6S 99609 681°79 €1H°€9 LEYYY 198°S9 [L2UAN
L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE  L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE 95°99TSE  L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE L9T'SE Juomsedoy
Tl LYY'T 1L9°¢ S681 611°9 TeE'L 995°8 06L°6 $10°TT LETTI 19%°€1 S89p1 606°ST TEI'LT 95€81 085°61 +08°0T LT0°TT IST'€T SLYYT 00669°ST  TT6'9T 9¥1°8T 0LE'6T $65°0€ Jsapdjuy
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
8E/LEOT  LE/9EOT  9€/SEOT  SE/HEOT  bE/€E0T  €€/TE0T  TE/IEOT  1€/0€0T  0€/6T0T  6T/8T0T  8T/LTOT  LT/9TOT  9T/STOT  STVYTIOT  vT/€TL0T  €T/TTOT  TT/ITOT  1T/0T0T | 0T/610T | 61/810T  SI/LIOT  LI/910T  9I/SI0T  SIHL0T  +I/E10T
STIBIA  PTIBIA  €TIABIA T ABIX  JTABIX (T ABIA 6] IBOA QI JABIX L] JABIX Q[ JIBIX ST JABIA  HIIABIA  C[ABIXN [ JABIX [ JIBIX (] IBIX 6 189X gaBIX L IedX 9 aBdX S aBIX 21208 € a8 7aex JRLE)N
$99°188 ueo] [euBULQ (B0,
SIBIA ST pord yuomiedoy
€10z dunfiese %Ly’ 320U
UE0'] UOJRIN

A xipuaddy

UBOTY 8TEEIL'TF PIeog




Appendix F

Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery Interment Income Calculation

Confirmed Income first year of contract MSJCB Ldn/Gap Rd Total
Income to 31-3-17 70,939.00 56,004.00 126,943.00
Income to 31-01-18 500,062.60 350,788.00 850,850.60
Total for Contract Year 571,001.60 406,792.00 977,793.60
Guaranteed Weighted Income 545,000.00 320,259.00 865,259.00
Income Above Threshold 26,001.60  86,533.00 112,534.60
Weighted Income above Threshold (60%) 14,751.14 49,091.62 63,842.76
[Total Sum Due to MSJC 559,751.14|
[Total Sum Assumed 2017/18 Accounts 567,018.00|
[Reduction to Prior Year Income (7,266.86)|
Income figure to be assumed for 2018/19

Guaranteed Weighted Income 545,000.00

Reduction of Prior Year Income (7,266.86)
Income figure to be assumed for 2018/19 537,733.14
[Income figure to be assumed for 2019/20 545,000.00 |

Page 15



0zocr) [(SS6'9y) [(FIL1H) [S60°SS [e)oL
LTT'€F IO §1/L10T WO anp SWOSUL SIPN[D Ul . . . ) .
61/3107 pOTOINSd - £ [-7-7 wouy op1oap] 0 poseary| 200 TO)  [(E€1°9T) |(000°7T)  |V/N 9}2 WOOISSIN ‘PIEA
#9670 #9670  [(#967)  |V/N a3po]
0 0 0 S€9T as() A1ojowa)
owooul Jo areyo siedk oud 10J 8061 F . . . .

1o wms ywounsnfpe snyd og/ ‘o3 poreumso ¢1,810z| OSL ) [(859'8)  |(0SL9) {6200 20
81/L/1€ woxy 000°9F 03 saseardur|(000°9)  [(000°S)  [(0009)  |S€1T 1D%D pue [d¥d
81/8/1¢€ woxy [eudy pasandur((00ry)  [(002H)  [(0001)  |¥9°T v

02/6102 a_mﬂm 61/8102
Arejuowiwio))| [eIudYy [enuuy [2audy SNV vAIY

[enuuy pasTAaY [enuuy

o xipuaddy

WU [BIUIY - PIBOY AIIJIWD)) JUIOL UOYNS PUE UOLIIA]

Page 16



PRECEPT HISTORY M&SJCB Appendix H

Year ended Interments  Expenditure Income Net Precepts Surplus /
31st March (excluding Expenditure/ (Deficit)
precepts) (Income) C/Fwd
£ £ £ £ £
1948 170 8,000 1,266 6,734 8,243 1,316
1949 285 7,477 2,214 5,263 4,593 646
1950 377 8,803 3,476 5,327 5,747 1,066
1951 414 9,927 4,572 5,355 6,494 2,205
1952 373 10,422 3,931 6,491 4,411 125
1953 406 10,845 4,152 6,693 6,927 359
1954 364 10,305 5,032 5,273 7,531 2,617
1955 379 11,091 5,660 5,431 5,344 2,530
1956 417 12,915 6,297 6,618 6,626 2,538
1957 423 14,338 6,584 7,754 7,355 2,139
1958 396 15,237 7,482 7,755 7,413 1,797
1959 422 14,680 7,459 7,221 9,215 3,791
1960 374 17,225 7,123 10,102 8,903 2,592
1961 372 16,485 7,121 9,364 9,455 2,683
1962 379 17,968 8,226 9,742 10,462 3,403
1963 409 19,154 8,202 10,952 11,406 3,851
1964 333 18,636 8,150 10,486 10,956 4,327
1965 339 19,356 7,727 11,629 10,472 3,170
1966 410 21,488 9,539 11,949 12,971 4,192
1967 355 24,293 9,307 14,986 13,989 3,195
1968 375 26,500 9,322 17,178 18,346 4,363
1969 399 26,182 10,103 16,079 17,564 5,848
1970 411 25,878 10,191 15,687 17,983 8,144
1971 387 30,941 10,156 20,785 17,983 5,342
1972 397 33,707 15,173 18,534 26,228 13,036
1973 359 33,495 18,645 14,850 18,395 16,581
1974 346 37,703 15,871 21,832 20,104 14,853
1975 322 46,775 17,103 29,672 19,785 4,966
1976 323 57,495 24,559 32,936 35,180 7,210
1977 295 67,119 24,308 42,811 42,084 6,483
1978 313 67,444 25,799 41,645 36,636 1,424
1979 301 75,975 28,991 46,984 53,581 8,071
1980 325 91,654 34,860 56,794 60,155 11,432
1981 304 107,837 43,524 64,313 69,434 16,553
1982 304 117,461 48,842 68,619 69,784 17,718
1983 325 129,798 48,909 80,889 71,163 7,992
1984 303 137,921 51,307 86,614 80,920 2,298
1985 306 129,955 61,550 68,705 88,640 22,533
1986 311 134,485 66,690 67,795 80,560 35,298
1987 333 148,940 71,782 77,158 67,860 26,000
1988 320 146,533 75,728 70,805 73,442 28,637
1989 340 159,704 80,465 79,239 69,058 18,456
1990 327 162,053 88,208 73,845 75,565 20,176
1991 314 179,929 92,042 87,887 85,149 17,438
1992 343 188,624 110,025 78,599 68,365 7,204
1993 312 191,312 107,427 83,885 76,192 (489)
1994 387 189,687 152,926 36,761 79,444 42,194
1995 379 231,725 167,181 64,544 79,444 36,261
1996 358 207,870 197,191 10,679 80,795 106,377
1997 348 198,678 204,958 (6,280) 40,000 152,658
1998 364 194,514 236,535 (42,021) 0 194,679
1999 356 211,2 244 542 (33,300) 0 227,979
2000 312 216,8312339 623-8,694 (31,825) 0 259,804



PRECEPT HISTORY M&SJCB Appendix H

Year ended Interments  Expenditure Income Net Precepts Surplus /
31st March (excluding Expenditure/ (Deficit)
precepts) (Income) C/Fwd
£ £ £ £ £
2001 314 230,329 255,315 (24,987) 0 284,791
2002 317 218,613 286,709 (68,096) (194,064) 158,823
2003 320 260,664 302,866 (42,202) 0 201,025
2004 327 285,719 336,688 (50,970) 0 251,995
2005 306 291,487 351,113 (59,626) (150,000) 161,621
2006 290 329,568 394,944 (65,376) 0 226,997
2007 292 357,500 374,118 (16,618) 0 243,615
2008 264 363,008 361,033 1,975 0 241,640
2009 267 503,040 447,967 55,073 0 186,568
2010 228 467,356 385,789 81,567 0 98,340
2011 243 347,679 402,080 (54,401) 0 139,969
2012 212 361,096 500,971 (139,876) 0 279,845
2013 224 539,401 549,024 (9,622) 0 289,468
2014 216 508,926 538,540 (29,615) 0 319,082
2015 217 555,404 590,638 (35,235) 0 354,316
2016 262 569,668 710,329 (140,661) 0 494,977
2017 237 588,562 606,882 (18,321) 0 513,298
2018 256 452,466 600,845 (148,380) 0 661,678

Page 18



Merton and Sutton Joint Cemetery
(MSJC)

Risk Management Strategy

Revised February 2019

Page 19



Policy Statement

MSJC’s policy is to manage our risks by identifying, assessing and controlling them,
with the aim of eliminating or reducing them to acceptable levels whilst being mindful
that some risks will always exist and will never be eliminated.

The Board recognises its responsibility to risk management by supporting a
structured, systematic and focussed approach to risk management through the
approval of our risk management strategy. To optimise effectiveness the Board have
adopted Merton’s approach, policy, strategy and processes to dovetail with that
embedded into the London Borough of Merton’s operational and strategic activity.

The effective management of risk is at the core of our approach to delivering cost
effective and efficient services as well as sound governance and is a continuous
and evolving process, running through our strategies and service delivery
arrangements. As risk is very much concerned with our objectives, the management
of it will be closely linked to the creation of our strategic, service, project and
partnership objectives and plans.

Our risk management process will be continuous and will support internal and
external change. The risk management process will be fully integrated with the
normal business management processes across the organisation.

MSJC’s aims and objectives in relation to risk management are to:

e Establish and maintain a robust framework and procedures for the identification,
analysis, assessment and management of risk, including reporting and recording.

¢ Minimise the cemetery’s exposure to unacceptable levels of risk, minimise injury,
damage, loss and inconvenience to staff, residents and service users.

¢ Integrate risk management into the day to day activities of staff and the culture of
the organisation, raising awareness of the importance and need for risk
management.

e Assign clear roles and responsibilities for councillors and officers responsible for
risk management

e Ensure consistent application of our methodology across all of our activities,
including partnerships and projects.

o Effectively manage the total cost of risk.

We will achieve this by:

e Having a clear and concise risk management strategy which underpins our
approach and responsibilities to risk

e Incorporating risk management into business planning, project management
and service delivery

e Monitoring and reporting risk on a regular basis to very Board meeting.

Page 20



Risk Management Strategy

The process of identifying and evaluating risks is known as risk assessment. By
understanding the risks we face, we are better able to actively recognise where
uncertainty surrounding events or outcomes exists, and identify measures which can
be taken to protect the cemetery, its staff, residents, customers and assets from
these risks.

This strategy provides a structured approach to identifying emerging risks as well as
assessing and managing current risks. It also incorporates a process for regularly
reviewing and updating identified risks.

This strategy will be reviewed on an annual basis, and updated where required.

What is risk?

Risk is the threat that an event or action may adversely affect an organisation’s
ability to achieve its objectives and successfully execute its strategies. A risk can be
a threat, obstacle, barrier, concern, problem or event that may prevent us fulfilling
our objectives.

Our risk management processes also include the assessment of Issues. Issues are
current problems, questions, outstanding items, tasks or a request that exists in the
immediate present. There is a strong element of fact surrounding it. An issue
becomes a risk when the issue cannot be addressed and could continue or get
worse.

Definition of Risk Management

Organisations exist to achieve their ambitions, aims and objectives. Risk
Management is the process by which organisations methodically address and
identify the risks that may prevent them from achieving these ambitions, aims and
objectives. The intention is to achieve sustained benefit within each of their
activities, and across the portfolio of all their activities.

Ultimately, risk management is about creating a better understanding of the most
important problems facing organisations.

Risk is also implicit in the decisions all organisations take; how those decisions are
taken will affect how successful they are in achieving their objectives. Decision
making is, in turn, an integral part of the day to day existence and is particularly
significant in times of change. Risk management therefore is a key component in the
management of change and helps to support effective decision making.

We endeavour to identify all risks facing the cemetery and to monitor, manage and
mitigate (where possible) all those risks which are deemed to be high (scored Amber
or Red).

The benefits of risk management

In addition to the business and service benefits of our approach, we are required to
undertake risk management because it forms part of the Annual Governance
Statement. We must, therefore, demonstrate that we have a systematic strategy,
framework and process for managing risk.

Page 21



However, the Board recognises that the benefits of risk management far outweigh
the requirement to undertake the activity and such benefits include:

e Stronger ability to achieve our ambitions, aims and objectives as key risks are
managed.

e Better decision making as we are more aware of risk.

Ability to take advantage of opportunities because we understand the risks

attached to them.

Better governance and the ability to demonstrate it to our stakeholders.

Reduction in failure, loss, damage and injury caused by risk

Improvement in our ability to adapt to change

Improvement in our corporate governance

Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements

Organisational awareness of risk and risk management

Ensuring that there is a strong organisational awareness of risk management will be
achieved through utilisation of the procedures and processes put in place by the
London Borough of Merton including training sessions, reviews, departmental
meetings, briefings and staff bulletins which will take place on a regular basis. The
risk management intranet page will be regularly reviewed and staff will be
signposted to the information they need to pro-actively identify and manage risk i.e.
the Risk Management Toolkit and other guidance.

Risk Appetite

The cemetery recognises that its risk appetite to achieve the corporate priorities
identified within its business plan could be described in general as an “informed and
cautious” approach. Where significant risk arises, we will take effective control
action to reduce these risks to an acceptable level.

It is also recognised that a higher level of risk may need to be accepted, for example
to support innovation in service delivery. To offset this there are areas where the
cemetery will maintain a very cautious approach for example in matters of
compliance with the law, and public confidence in the cemetery, supporting the
overall “informed and cautious” position on risk.

How does risk management integrate with other policies?

Risk management links closely with Health and Safety, Business Continuity,
Emergency Planning and Insurance; by ensuring close links we can enhance our
resilience. Generally, a single issue or risk will fall into only one of these categories;
however some may fall into two or more. As Business Continuity is a way of
mitigating risk, its link with risk management is key to ensuring the continuous
delivery of services which are important to the community.

o

A
cross cutting issues

affecting the achievemant of

business objectives

7ﬁmmm

Issues affecting the
achievement of service
objectives

Services

Issues affecting the
achievement of project
and operational objectives

-~ Operational

Page 22



Risk management in projects
Risk management is a key part of the ongoing management of projects and
partnerships and is clearly defined in Merton's Approach to Projects (MAP).

Risk management in partnerships

The cemetery is likely to be involved in a range of partnerships to achieve our
ambitions, aims and objectives. It is vital we assess the risks to achievement within
our key partnerships, and ensure that they are monitored regularly.

Risk management and financial planning

Risk management is an important part of financial planning. As part of the budget
setting process a robust risk assessment is completed, and then reviewed on a
regular basis.

It is important that risks identified and assessed at an operational level can be
escalated to managers and the Board. However, because a risk may have a great
impact on an individual does not necessarily follow that it may have the same impact
on the service.

Financial Risk Management

Local government has faced unprecedented financial challenges in recent years that
are likely to remain well into the next decade. The harsh financial economy faced by
local authorities has led Central Government and the public sector accounting body
CIPFA to start to consider how best to minimise the chance of further Section 114
notices being released and providing early warnings of authorities being unable to
balance their budgets.

For MSJC focus is placed on monitoring contractor information regarding income to
ensure targets are met, monitoring costs to ensure operations are conducted within
the income generated and an awareness of the future impact of the organisation’s
pension fund and its long term business model to ensure that sufficient reserves exist
to maintain the cemetery when all burial space is utilised.

There is also a financial impact element to the authorities risk matrix which has been

recently reviewed and simplified. Officers will continue to review activity and adopt
best practice etc. where appropriate

Page 23



Scoring Risk

In conjunction with this strategy, more detailed guidance will be issued to assist
officers in identifying risks and issues, and the scoring, managing and reporting of
those risks identified.

When determining a score for cemetery level risks, definitions of likelihood and
impact of risk should be used in conjunction with the matrix below. Therefore, if the
likelihood of a risk is 4, significant, (occurs or likely to occur more than 25%, and up
to 50% of the time) and the impact is 3, critical, (service provision - service
suspended short term) — then the risk rating will be 12 (4x3) which is amber.

Defining the Likelihood of Risk

Classification Definition
6 - Very High Occurs or likely to occur more than 90% of the time
5 - High Occurs or likely to occur more than 50%, and up to 90% of the
time

I Occurs or likely to occur more than 25%, and up to 50% of the
4 - Significant time
3 - Possible Occurs or likely to occur more than 5% and up to 25% of the time
2-Low Occurs or likely to occur more than 1% and up to 5% of the time
1 - Almost Impossible | Occurs or likely to occur up to 1% of the time

Defining the Impact of Risk

Categories L § ° S
Marginal Moderate Serious Very Serious
Financial £100k - £500k £500k - £1m per £1m - £5m per Over £5m per
Impact - Fl per annum annum annum annum
Service
Service Sianificant Service suspended long
Provision - | Reduced service gniie suspended short term / statutory
reduction .
SP term duties not
delivered
. Maijor loss of life
Health and Broken bones / Major |IInes_s / Loss of life / major / large scale
Safety - illness threat not life illness illness
HS threatening .
(pandemic)
o Objectives of one Statutory
Objectives service area not I_I)epartmental . Cc_)rporate objectives not
-0 objectives not met | objectives not met
met met
Adverse local
media story long .
Reputation Ad\_/erse local term. Adve_rs_e national Remembered for
media lead story : publicity longer
-R Adverse national years

short term

publicity short
term.

term

Page 24




Risk Matrix

Likelihood Impact
b 6. Very high 4. Very Serious
__g 5. High 3. Serious
g_" 4. Significant 2. Moderate
- 3. Possible 1. Marginal

2. Low

1. Almost impossible

Impact

Reporting and escalating risks

All risks are reviewed for reporting to each meeting of the Board. Officers and staff
linked to the cemetery are expected to raise risks and issues as identified. These
are then reviewed and where necessary escalated to the Board.

Monitoring and Managing

During the year, new risks will arise that have not previously been considered and
there may be changes to existing risks. Therefore the risk register needs to be
regularly managed, with risk owners re-assessing their risks, re-scoring them if
appropriate, and providing sufficient narrative in respect of the Control Measures
they have in place (i.e. the actions which they are taking to mitigate against the risk).
The reviews of risk registers should be managed by exception.

The Board have adopted the London Borough of Merton’s approach to risk
management and as such the MSJC Risk Register is reviewed by Merton’s
Corporate Risk Management Group to ensure consistency of treatment throughout
the Authority.

Removal of any risks from the registers must be approved by the Board. To be
removed from the register risks must have remained green for two consecutive
meetings of the Board. There are otherwise no rigid guidelines for dropping risks
from the registers because clear parameters are not always possible. A decision is
sometimes taken to keep a low-scoring risk in view on the basis that its status might
change over a short period, or so those with an assurance role can be confident
mitigation against a risk can be sustained

Roles, Responsibilities and Governance

Board

Elected councillors are responsible for governing the delivery of services to the local
community. Councillors have a responsibility to understand the key risks the
cemetery faces and will be made aware of how these risks are being managed
through the annual business planning process. All Councillors will have a
responsibility to consider the risks associated with the decisions they undertake and
will be informed of these risks in the plans and reports submitted to them.

Officers

Officers are ultimately accountable in ensuring that risk management is fully
embedded in the Cemetery’s business planning and monitoring processes as well as
having overall accountability and responsibility for leading the delivery of the
cemetery’s Risk Management Strategy. They will take a leading role in the risk
management process, ensuring that risk management is communicated, understood
and implemented by Councillors, mangagig @r@5taff.



Client Side/Contractor

Client Side/Contractor have a responsibility not only for the risks for which they are
the risk owner, but are also accountable for those risks, within their service, which
are owned / managed by others.

They are required to maintain an awareness of risk and ensure that any risks they
identify are captured by the risk management process, understanding and
responding to the key risks which could significantly impact on the achievement of
their service and/or team objectives. Managers should encourage staff to be open
about risk so that appropriate mitigation actions and control measures can be
agreed.

Risk Owners

Risk owners are responsible for identifying and implementing appropriate actions
which will mitigate against risks they own and reduce these risks to a level
acceptable to the organisation. They are required to regularly review the
effectiveness of their control measures and provide information as part of reviews to
the Board.

Individual Staff

Individual employees need to have an understanding of risks and consider risk
management as part of their everyday activities, identifying risks deriving from their
everyday work, processes and environment. Risks which could impact on service
delivery, the achievement of objectives, or their own or others’ wellbeing must be
identified and actively managed, with mitigating actions in place where appropriate.

Page 26



*sjuie|dwod Jo

Jagwinu ay} uj 8sealoul 1oeduy 'S9OIAIDS
|leuibiew e usaq -BWooUI B6uIbbip anelb pue
sey alay} se pasealoul B ‘| eoueusjuiew spunolb
uaaq sey Ysu ayJ - gLoc T 45moj pue uonendai Jo ‘uonessiuipe aolo|  syjuswebuelle
Q SEUISU BUL “| -ep-1g 9 = SwiIe) Ul seousnbesuod HEOSILILIPE SoL) 6 ) KIlanijep @21nIeS JeBeuepy
o4 ¥l pieog au} 310 ] bS] |enuajod UORNS pue UOHISY | BURIERUOD Iopun anss| |euonesado Jood|  8pIS usID
6104 Ag penleoal ussq sey +0c 9 o : 10 uonesijeula)xa| pansiyoe Aisaljep : : :
-ken-Gz 0} Buipes| Ayjenb e.09d0rsiN
Hodau Jojoejuod isii - 2y} Jo 9ousnbasuoo 90IAJIBS 100d
pue Aouaiolje 99IAIDS
sjuleidwoo| 8102 z 40 10Bdu SANEBS e se joayoe [euonelsado
1O |9A8] 8y} pue Joesjuod| ~ON-80 ; I SAHELON anlebau e aq ||im
a3 jo uopelado| 4,0z 29y} 18y} SI Ysu ay L
8} Jojluow 8pIs-jusl] -| -qo4-y| 9
‘pouad siy) JOAO UBAD
yeaiq 0} 9|66n.s Aew
. pJeog ay) pue ‘awny
olwspued Bwﬂmmmmo_uu_ Jo pouad e Joj sjons)
ol w UOUM DUB wm awoou| payoadxa 'sleak Jo Jaquinu
HmcMM_ w&m Qx _\w, jeduw) Jamo| Aq 18s}40 aq e 10} paonpal aq
1 21ep . MM e — pInoMm awooul Ul 86Ins|  [|m SB2IAISS |elng 10} .
MoJ 83inb = . awooul
= leniul sy “yo pied| puewsp ey pabesiaua awooul
pawaap si olwepued £B w9y buoj pue 6
5 a1e SUBO| UOISUD)Xd sI Jl Apuenbeasqgng . ul uoronpal Jabeue,
) € J0 Aungeqoud 2 ds U} UoIym Jano awi jo| “Alsjewan ay je eness| LNPOW HOus Uo sl e 0} Buipes
6102 g9o4 ¥L ay} Juesaid v 2 Ui Yoy iy } Ui} olwepue o|qissod isiy } buipes| | apIS t\_w__mb
. yibus| oy} Jopisuooal| sseuw ayy Woly awooul olwepued
lelng ssew Joy| 8L0C A 6 e Jo Joedw| [@))
SaLB)eWSD Jo Joquinu| “BN-0Z 74 0} U.wwc ew ul abuns e aq ||Im 20990rsn <
e 5N DINOM Lorym ue(d pJeog ayj ‘uonippe| aiayy Ajleiiul “wis) Buo) o
(N4 dUIMS) oIuBpUE .>MS.N 14 Ul 's|eunq [enplaipul] 8y Ul paonpal 8q ||im
w i0dion & UEo.L.._ n-se woJj pajesoualb| awooul jeyy si ysu ayL
} O aul 4 gl0z 18y} ueyy Jomoj
89e(d U} Ueld U0V | -ron-go 4 g p|nom |elng ssew
6102 e WwoJj awooul Aseyun
-qe4-vi v ay) 1ey) pabesiaua si |
1eduw)
L
o
3
2
J19ys16ay ysiy pieog ssl8)daWSY JUIOr UOHNS R UOKBN FIrSIN
papinoad K10)SIH malnay 9po2 anss|
oeg suonay |oJ3uo) g 01008 JusLINY XUe Joeduw (s)eouanbasuon (s)osnep uonduasaq ysty 103813 aweN B 9apo) | JaumQ sty

610Z ¥ 19)4enpd ~ pieog SaLI9}OWa) JUIOL UOING R UOLD|\ ~ 19)S169Yy sanss| B sysiy




"90IAISS

(o0}
JIxa1g |eap ou 1eduw) oU) SOPINGIT-0] Jxa1g Aq pausyybiay N
e JO 9ouey9 8y} 109|181 UOLOW uw__r_z., pouad ale buiuaddey
0} INoj 0} pasealoul C : : SIY} JO SooUBYD BY) )
Jan0abuBYD WiIdUI 6
uoaq sey Ysu siyy T JBYjoym Jeajoun si | sjuswiabuelie labeue
5 ay) buunp uoisinoud| . 10BJU0D
JO JudWwald pooyliayl| a 90IAI9S 8y} apinoid-al ino-Bunoenuoo | apIs Jual|
6L0Z 904 vL . =] o a91A18s uodn joedw 9y} WOJ} J0JoBIJUOD NEIS| : .
oy Alessaoau §i = 0} PodU PINOM UOHB|\| Jo ainjie4
ue aaey [|im uopepinbi| 9U} JO [eMBIPLRIAA
uolsinoid-a1 8oUBIWOD 810z / UONEASIUIUPE Jey} pue joeJju0d 2,092rsSn
O} S} MOJ[e [IIM YIIUM( _ron-go 9 cm:o.____H 10 rm_wwv 9y} Woli melpypm
pouad a2130u ul-jIing : Kew Joyoenuoo
e seyjoenuoo ayy | 610 Aq Joyya J0enU0d ay1 jey: ysu e s alay ]
-q94-y1 8 By} Wouj |[emelpyipn i :
‘pleoq
8y} 0} papodal 8q [[Im
}1 ‘o|qe|leAe Sawo9aq 1eduw)
uoljewJoyul [euolippe
SY "'0Z0Z U1 anp C puny ‘uonenjenal
Sl uonen|ersy [eueny|( o oo W uolsuad a8y} ulejulew |elen}oy yoea je pun; uoisuad puny
8102 AON 80 X8U 8y "Jyels Jawloy| Aep-gz 9 2 ds 0} Buipuny jeuonippe| asea.oul ||Im JI043p dU} SIEw Q.m‘_maww onss| uoisuad gorsin Jainseas|
JO umopyeaiq pajie}op = woJy suoneoldwi| ayedidnue am yasym Joy e se oy} Bulutejure|y
e apinoid 0} d|geun si .>Mxv.mmm 9 uoisuad wia) Buo punj uoisuad ainjew 4 €ors q,092rsSn
[1ouno) Ayuno) Asung pue wnipajy ‘Loys ay} 1y} sI s ay
UoIYym Joj puny ainjew| 8102 9
e sl siy] "palojyuow| “"ON-80 O
8q 0} 8NURUOD (M| )0z
uonenys [eoueuy ayL| -gas-pl 9
papiroad K10)SIH malnay apod anssj
o1eq SUOI}dY |04jU0) 2 01098 JuUsLIND XLeN Joeduw| (s)aouanbasuo) (s)asnen uonduosaq jsiy 10 %S1y QweN @ 9po) | JaumQ ysiy




Agenda Iltem 5

Committee: MERTON AND SUTTON JOINT CEMETERY BOARD
Date: 26 February 2019

Wards; Borough Wide Merton and Sutton
Subject: Contractor Report

1. That Members review the information and note the content of the
report.
1. Purpose of the Report and Executive Summary

1.1 This report to the Board reviews the activity from 15t November 2018 to
13 February 2019 and discuss work activity for this period. It is
intended that a report is presented to each meeting of the Board
covering key areas of activity.

1.2 The report will cover the following areas.
Key performance activity

Complaints and compliments
Income

—_
WN -

2. Details
21 Key Performance Activity November 2018 to February 2019

2.1.1 Grounds Maintenance
General maintenance this time of year is keeping the cemetery tidy and
topping up and levelling graves.

Mapping

Local Authorities Cemeteries Order 1977 (LACO 1977) requires the
Local Authority to have section maps with grave numbers of
cemeteries. The maps must be kept and updated.

New graves available for the special area have no maps and have not
be digitised as per LACO 1977 without maps and digitisation these
graves cannot be used.

Only 30 graves remaining on the special area of the Ahmadiyya
community.

Burial numbers

See appendix 1 for Burial numbers for 1t Jan 2018 to 31t December
2018

Page 29



2.2

2.21

222

2.3

2.3.1

Litter Bins

The MSJC Board in Feb 2009 agreed to look at new bins. MSJC
Board report of July 2009 states bins have been purchased by the
Board. MSJC Board/Merton Client Manager/LBM have reported bins
are not fit for purpose. To replace the bins would be down to the MSJC
including cost of removing waste.

Complaints and Compliments

Complaints of detailed

Number Reason

Neighbouring grave items interfering with adjoining grave

An out of Borough family requested a burial on a day that
was not possible. It was raised with Merton but no official
complaint was made to idverde. The burial did take place
the same week.

Total 1

Summary of Compliment

Number | Reason

The complaint above re the adjoining grave was happy
with the final outcome.

Total 1

Income

See Appendix 3: 15t January 2018 to 31st December 2018 income
figures.

Consultation undertaken or proposed
None for the purposes of this report.

Timetable
None for the purposes of this report.

Financial, resource and property implications
As contained in the body of the report.

Legal and statutory implications
None for the purposes of this report.

Page 30




8. Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications

8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9. Risk management and health and safety implications
9.1 Considered within the Client Side Report.

10. Appendices

Appendices

1 Burial numbers for 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
2 Income 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018

Page 31




Appendix 1

Interments 2018

Wards: Borough Wide Merton and Sutton
Subject: INTERMENTS
Lead officer: Mark Robinson

Details of interment statistics are provided below

DETAILS

1.1 Burial numbers for the period 1%t January 2018 to 31t December 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
January 21 23 22 25 16
February 26 16 25 21 20
March 26 22 20 22 18
April 23 14 18 25 19
May 21 27 21 20 17
June 17 23 26 20 11
July 15 19 12 35 16
August 25 18 15 23 10
September 21 24 15 7 17
October 22 18 26 27 19
November 21 18 19 19 21
December 18 14 24 19 19
TOTAL 256 236 243 263 203
2, FINANCIAL, EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES, PERSONNEL AND LEGAL
IMPLICATIONS
2.1. None for the purposes of this report.
Contact Officer:

Mark Robinson, Registrar: 020 3876 8806

Page 32



01°€L0'8L.3 | 00°688°CL3 | 00°L6S°LS3 | 01°808°8Y3 | 00°689°€S3 | 00°€2S 0.3 | 00°82L°€S3 | 00°9€0°ZY3 | 00°028°LL3 | 00°L2L°TL3 | 00'8.2°60L3 | 0S°L00°L83 | 05°0.66¥3 | :TVLiOL
deaydn
00°G..'V23 000 000 000 000 000 00001~ 00°00G- 00°056 00'05€‘6 00'0S5¥°2 05°2€S°/ 05°/8 pue
Bunueld
diysiaumo
0000993 0000} 00°000°L 00°'00¢€ 00°00S 00°00¢ 00°009 00°00% 00°00. 00009 00°009 00°00. 00°006 0
Jegeyel |
™
- : et | Amee e | SHayied
00°0€C' L¥3 00'es8'e 0006.¢ 00'L¥EE 00'6clLc 00'ee8'C 00eLly 00°'628'S 00'9¢c L 00°'Le9¢ 00°/S¢ 00°LL8'L 00'ss.¢ SeueN
S
mEDuEmE_
01'89%'G0.3 | 00°9€6'89 | 00°208°Z¥ | OL'L9L'GF | 00°09¥'0S | 00°06¥'29 | 00°GS0'6¥ | 00'LLE'QE | 00629 | 009¥L'09 | 00'LL6°00L | 00°656'0L | 00°'82Z'SY 't
aseyaind
o z 7
g ; 3 £ > . . . > s g s
o o o o Q c < o o o =S c
3 3 o 3 c < > < =1 (1) s O =
g g 3 g 8 N R N S - 3 2 &
3 g > g N 2 S 2 2 3 N 8 ©
8 8 3 3 2 ® ® ® @ = 3 3
Py - ) = © © ©o
(-] =] =]

Z Xlpuaddy

810z Joquiada 1€ 0} 8102 Alenuep x| awoou| A1sjowa) JUIof UONNG ' UOUS|A




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Budget Monitoring 2018/19 and Revenue Estimates 2019/20
	5 Contractor's Report February 2019
	Committee: MERTON AND SUTTON JOINT CEMETERY BOARD
	2. Details
	4. Consultation undertaken or proposed
	4.1 None for the purposes of this report.

	5. Timetable
	5.1 None for the purposes of this report.

	6. Financial, resource and property implications
	6.1 As contained in the body of the report.

	7. Legal and statutory implications
	7.1 None for the purposes of this report.

	8. Human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications
	8.1 None for the purposes of this report.

	9. Risk management and health and safety implications
	9.1 Considered within the Client Side Report.


	7 Exempt Minutes

